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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Starlite Lighting Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompany ing Ind AS financial statements of Starlite Lighting Limited (''rhe
company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 l, 202 l, the statement of profit and Loss.
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
ofChanges in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a
summary ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our infbrmation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS linancial starements give the information required by the companies Act,20l3, as
amended ("the Act'') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conlormity lvith the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of af-fairs of the company as at
March 3 l, 202 I , its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changis in equiq
tbr the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section l4l(10) ofthe Act. Our responsibilities under those Srandards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities fbr the Audit ofthe Ind AS Financial Statements'
section of our report. we are independent of the company in accordance with the 'code of Ethics'
issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit ofthe financial statemenls under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules thereunder.
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other informarion
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other infbrmation and we do nor
express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibilit-v is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent u.ith
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othenvise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
ofthis other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Mrnagement for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mafters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation ofthese Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view ofthe
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flo1as an6

thanges in equity ofthe Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under siction 133 oithe Act read
with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules.20l5, as amended. This responsibiliry also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisioni of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and deticting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively fbr ensuring the accuracy and completeness
ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are tiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concein and
using the going concern basis ofaccounting unless management either intends to liquidatelhe Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to tiaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high Ievel ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis ofthese Ind AS tinancial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgnrent and maintain
professional skepticisrn throughout the autlit. We also:

' Identif and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fiaud or error, design and perfbrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a baiis for our opinion. The risk ofnot
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, m isrepresentations, oithe override
of internal control.

' obtain an understanding ofintemal control rele\ant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are arso
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' conc_lude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accountrng
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions thar may cast significant doubt on the company's abirity to continue as a going
concern lf*e conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modily our opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent tne unaerrying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pranned
scope and timing of the audit and signiticant audit findingi, incLding an-y significant d;ficie;;ies in
internal control that we identily during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaiionships anJother
mafters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our independence, and where appricabre, related
safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I . As required by the Companies (A,'ditor's Report) Order, 20 1 6 ('.the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (lr) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs i and 4 ofthe order.

2. As required by Section I43(3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by raw have been kept by the cornpany
so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
comprehensive Income, the Cash Frow statement and Statement Jfchanges in Equity deart
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid Ind AS financiar statements compry with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 3 I . 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquarified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section r 64 (2) ofrhe Acr;

(f) With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating'effecti'veness
ofsuch controls, ref'er to our separate Repoft in ,,Annexure 

2., to this ."port; -

(g) In our opinion, rhe managerial remuneration for the year ended March 3 I , 2021 has been paid
/ provided b1'the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions ofsection 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I of the Companies (Audit and Aud itors) Ru res, 20 14, as amended in our opinion and
to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact ofpending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financiar statements - Refer note 26 to the ind AS financial statements:

ii The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii There were no amounts which rvere required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fi Num ber: 3249 82ElE3 00003

per
Partner
Membership Number: 097546
UDIN: 2 I 0975464AAACW656l

Place of Signature: Murnbai
Date: May 14, 2021
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Annexure I referred to in paragraphr under the heatring "Report of other legar and reguratory
requirements" ofour report ofeven date

Re: Starlite Lighting Limited ('the Company')

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the managemerrt during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification

(c) According to the information and expranations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properlies included in fixed assets aie pledged rvith thJ state iurk oitnoiu ara
are not availabre'uith the company. The same have not been independentry confirmed by the
bank and hence rve are unable to comment on the same.

(ii) The management has conducted physical verification of inventor) at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verifrcation.
lnventories lying rvith third parties have been confirmed by them'and no materiar
discrepancies rvere noticed in respect of such confirmations.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us. the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, hrms, limited
Iiability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under sectlon I ts of
the companies Act,20r3 ("the Act") Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and(c) ol the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not com..rr"j rpon.' '

(iv) In our opinion and according_to the intimation and explanations given ro us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section lg5
and 186 ofthe Act are-applicable. Accordingly, the piovisions ofclause :1iv) ofttre oraer are
not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 ofthe
Act and the companies (Acceptance ofDeposits) Rures,20l4 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) ofthe Order are not applicable.

(vi) we have broadly reviewed the books ofaccount maintained by the ( ompany pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance ofcost recoris'under section
148( I ) of the Act. related to the manufacture ofgoods, and are of the upinion tt ut p.i., tin.i",
the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. we have ni, no*.n..,
made a detailed examination of the same.

ql
rI MU
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(vii) (a)

(c)

(b)

undisputed statutory dues including provident f'und. employee's state insurance, income tax,
sales tar, duty ofcustoms, goods and service tax, cess and oiher statutory dues have generar.v-'
been regularly deposited with the. appropriate authorities though there 

-had 
been stiirrt a"ru1,

in ferv cases. The provisions relating to service tax, sales tax, d-urr* ofexcise and valire added
tax are not applicable to the Compan).

According to the information and expranations given to us, no undisputed amounts payabre
in respect of provident fund, employees, state iniurance, income_tax, duty of custom, ioodsand service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding,;t th" y.u..rid. fb,
a period ofmore than six months from the date they became payabre. T[e provisions rerating
to service tax, sales tax, duty ofexcise and value added tax are not appricabie to the Companf

According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax and duty of
excise on account ofany dispute, are as folrows. There are no dris on account ofany disiute
pertaining to sales-tax, service tax, duty ofcustom, value added tax and cess.

Brsed upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose ofreporting the true and fair vierr
ot the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no material fraud on rheiompanl h1
the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the ylar.

Nanre of thc
Statute

Nature of
dues

Amount
(Rs.)

Periotl to * hich
amount relates

(Financial Year)

Forum rr here
the dispute is

pending
lncome Tax Act.

t96l Income Tax 2,937,7 60 2005-2006 Commissioner
of Income Tax

Income Tax Act.
l96l Income Tax 855.1 88 2008-2009 Commissioner

of Income Tax

The Central
Excise Act, 1944

Excise Duty 629,004 * 2006-20t 7
Assistant

Commissioner-
CESTAT

* including penalty

(viii) In our opinion and according to.the information and explanations given by the managemenr.
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans oi borroruin! to a f-rnancial inslitution.
bank, government or dues to tlebenture holders.

(ix) In our opinion and according to information and expranations given by the management.
monies raised by the compan) by way of term roans were appried for the purpose f'oi which
they were raised. The Companv has not raised monies by wiy of initial pullic offer / further
public offer (including debt insrrumenrs).

G

(x)
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(xi) According to the information and explanations given 
.by the management, the manageriarremuneration has been paid / proi ideJ in accordaice ,uit[ th" pruuislor, 

"i 
.""ii#l's, *"awith Schedule V ro the Act.

(xii) In our opinion' the companl'.is not a Nidhi compan)'. fherefore, the provisions ofcrause3(xii) of the order are not appricabre to the company ind tr.n.. noi "o',''n.il;;;.(xiii) According to the information and expranations given by the management, transactions withthe rerated parries are in compriance with sectio'n r iz-ana tss 
"r 

Ir. a.i "i"..lroi."ur.and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the trnancial sraternenrs, as required by theapplicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information aM expranations given to us and on an overa, examination ofthe balance sheel. the Companv has not .ud. ,r'y pret.erential u orr.n, o. pl, u;;.;;;;;."r,of shares or lulll or panly conrenible debentures during_rhe year under ,!ri.rr-J# r,"r..,reporting requiremenrs under crause 3(xiv) are not apf,ricabie ," ,rr" c.*p"ry"u'ni, no,commented upon.

(x') According to the infonnation and expranations given by the management, the company hasnot entered into any non-cash transactions with-directors or persons connected with him asreferred to in section 192 ofthe Act.

(xvi) According to the infbrmation and expranations given ru us, the provisions ofsection 45_rA ofthe Reserve Bank of India Act, lgl4are ro, upifi.nUi.,o the Company.

FoTSRBC&COLLp
Chartered Accountants

Number: 324982E1E300003

per
Partrer
Membership Nurnber: 097 546
UDIN: 2 I 097546AAAACW6563

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May I4,2021

ICAI Firm
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lnn:xule 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements ofStarlite Lighting Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acti')

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Starlite Lighting Limited
("the Company") as of March 31,2021 in conjunction rvith our audit ofthe financial sta-teme"nts ofthe
Company fbr the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible fbr establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reponing criteiia established by; the Company 

"onriO".lngthe essential components of intemal control st;ted in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
controls c)ver Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note,') issued by the Institute or cr,u.t..eo
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ot'
adequate intemal financial controls that were operating eftecti;ly foi ensuring the o.a.rt1 unJ 

"ii;.i"ntconduct of its business, incruding^ adherence to the Company's poricies, the slafeguara;ng oi i,.'u...*,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completenlss of tire accountrng
records, and the timely preparation of reriabre trnanciar intbrmaiion, as required under the Act.

Aud itor's Responsibilit_v

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements burid on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section t+;ltol of
th^eAct, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued bv the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require ,r'i *.'.o,nply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
uas established and maintained and if such controls operaied effectively in all material ."rp".t..

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacr ofthe internal
financial controls over financial reporting and their operating eff'ectiveness. Ou. uralt of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining in understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these finan-cial statements, aiessing tle tsi it ut u
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating ef'fective'ness ol internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on ihe audltor,s 1rdg11.nt, i".ira,ng
the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatemenr ofthe financial statements, rvhether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit er idence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pror ide a basis for
our audit opinion on the ittternal financial controls system over tinancial ieporting o,,t1 ."i"..n.. to
these fi nancial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal tlnancial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of tinancial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with
ref'erence to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (l) p;ftain io the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with senerallv
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are belng miae onli
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and l3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitrtions oflnternal Pinancial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper manalement override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections ofany evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting lvithieference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial control over
financial reporting with relerence to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating etfectively. as at
March 31,2021, based on the internal control over tinancial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note iisued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FoTSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Number: 324982E/8300003

per Vishal
Partner
Membership Number: 097546
UDIN: 2 | 0q7546,4AAACWb56j

Place of Signatr.rre; Mumbai
Date: May 14.2021
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Stariite LiShtina Limited
Bal.nce sheet ar at March 3t, 2021

l arch 31, 2021 Itarch 31, 2020

ASSETS

Property, ptant and equjpment
Capital work in progress

lfltansibte assets
Right-of-use assets

Other financialassets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Advance income tax (net)
Other non-current assets
Tot l Don-.urrent alsets

Trade reaeivabtes

Cash and cash equivatents
Oth€r financiat assets

Tot l .urrent assets

3

3

4
27

5(c)
6

7
E

9

5(.)
5(b)
5(c)
10

,67,19,986
1,94,93,1_40

3,42,46,84

10.41,80,869

16,51,3?2

58.47,657

1,07,71,20,520
1,?7,97,69

6,81,27,685

9 ,79 ,75,9-16

7,75,669
1.11.61.161

r,r3,r9,0o,014

15,74,51,217

75,24,16,59
76,?1,465

5,94,1O,694

10.44.81.93

1 ,26,79,59 ,923

14,05,59,215

25,96,4$,8
57,119

7,41,-l],721
4.11.6?.561

7A,14,42,457 70,55,19 ,027

TOTAL ASSETS 1 .9't .37 .42.871 1.97_35_08.950

EQUN'Y AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share caDitat
Other <uity
Tot l equity

LAAIL|TIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabitiries

Borrowings

Lease tiabitjty
LooS term provisions
Tot l non-current li.blllties

Curr€nt lLbilitiet
Einancial tiabilities

Borrowings

Lease tiability

Dues of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises
Dues of creditoE other than mjcro enterprise and smalt ente.prises

Other f inanciaL Liabilities
Short term provisions

Other current liabitities
Totat current li.billties

tl
12

r3(.)
27
'11

r3(b)
2.7

13(d)
r3(d)
13(c)

11

!5

12,50,00,000
13.64.35.31.027)

1 2,50,00,000
13.14.86.47.9531

(3.51.85.33.027t (3,02,36,47.9531

1 ,25,25,47 ,167
2,14,3',t ,758
7.15.26.1',l6

1,50,73,90,828
7,21,92,991
1,69,95,681

1 ,79 ,65,05,611

1,45,61,11,674
8,05,94,96n

9,96,70,814
19 ,27 ,35,729

1 ,87 ,30,45,875
2,95,12,775

39,97,410

1 ,59,65,79,502

1,74,64,49,979
7,O1,77,291

3,16,84,973
20, t7 ,99,726

1,?6,54,86,598
1,08,19,673

41.39.661
4,13,37,7O,75t 3,40,05,77 ,1O 1

5,43,22,75,494 1.99.71.56.903

TOTAL EQUITY AND LABILITIES 1 ,9'1 ,37 ,42,47 1 r,97,35,08,950

Sumrnary of sl8nlfic.nt .ccounting policles
The .ccompanyiB rlot 5 .r. .n integral part of the lnd AS flnanclal st.tements

A5 p.r our report of even d.te

rorSRBC&COLLP For ind on b€h.lf of Board of
ol Starlite LiShtjq Limlted

shekhar BaJaJ

Chairman
DIN: 00089158

Ptace of signature: Mumbai
Date: May 14,2021

DIN:00148916

Ptace of sign ture : l\ umba
Date: May 1zl, 2021

qil't"*
Ranndr. Uttek r
Company Secretary

Ptace of signarure : Nashik
Date: 

^ay 
14, 2021

Ptace of signature : Nashik
Oate: May 14, 2021

Place of signature : l,lumbai
Date: /l ay 14, 2021

{uu,t-x0
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Summary of significant accounting policies 7.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the lnd AS financial statem€nts

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of Eoard of Directors
of Starlite Lighting Limited

4
Shekhar Bajaj
Chairman
DIN:00089358

Place of signature i Mumbai
Datet May 14, 2021

Ptace of signature : Mumbai
Date: May 14,2021

Q--*V
Ravindra Uttekar
Company Secretary

Place of signature : Nashik Ptace of signature :

Date: 
^ 

ay 14, 2021 Date: May 14, 202'1

Nashik

Particulars Notes
l'{arch 31,202'l

Rupees
,{arch 31, 2020

Rupees
INCOME

Revenue from operatjons
Other income

16

17
1 ,81 ,00, 1 9,797

81,54,442

't ,72,89 ,55 ,6?2
54,82,694

Total income 1 ,81 ,41 ,7 4 ,239 1.73.44.3E.3't6

EXPENSES

Cost of raw materiat consumed
(lncrease)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-
progress

Employee benefits expense
Deprecjation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Finance cost

16(a)

18(b)

'19

20
21

22

1,32,00,24,513
1,01,01,131

10,52,57,077
10,06,77,853
21,39,54,944
49 .90 ,97 .299

1,31,M,39,572
2,51,87,957

9,91,63,987
10,89,22,6M
19 ,83,41,727
46.05.95.114

Iotal expense 2.24.91.12.817 2,72,26,52,961

Loss before exceptional items and tax
ExceptionaI items
Lo5s before tax

lncome tax expense

(43,09,3E,578)
6,25,31,464

149,34,70,O42\

G8 ,42,14 ,6451
46,90,000

(49 .79 .O4 .645\

Los5 for the year t49 .34 .70 .O42\ A9 .79 .O4.6451

Other comprehensive income
Items that witl not be rectassified to profit and loss

Re.measurements gains/ (tosses) on defjned benefit ptans
lncome tax effect

(14,15,032) (34,24,496)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) ( 14. 1 5,032) t34,24,496\
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax \49 ,48 ,85 ,O7 4) \49 ,63 ,29 ,1 41].

Earnings per share - face value Rs. 10.00 per share
Eefore exceptionaL jtems ' Easic and dituted
After exceptional items - Basic and dituted

(34.48)
(39.46)

(3e.06)
(39.43)

FoTSRBC&COLLP
lCAl Fdrm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

Partner

Place of signature : Mumbai
Date: A ay 14, 2021

MembershipNo.097546 \\.'1
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JF'n.k.(6ts (iftludins f.tr v.lechange in rrnan<ial intrffirs)
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I
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ln(r6*/{d€rea*) in short tem p@ijons
lncreak/(d6reae) in $6de p.yabl-
lncrea*/ (dftr€a*) in other condr liabilitiB
lncrca*/ (dere.*) in other tinan.ial liabilfti6: codst

h.oft td p.id (net of rdunds)
i.t ..sh tlos frm oper.tins .ctiviti es

Pur.ha* or pror€rty, plant and equipmt including capjtal wori-in-progrd and <apital adva.c6
Pr(eds trm ste or pror€rty, pl.nt and equipmr
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N.t c.rh flM u*<, in investi4 adivitics

Paymt for tea* Uabilitie
Pr6eed3 trm bomiry3
Reraymnt of bor*irys
Net.8l flM frm fi nan.i nB .ctivftiet

Net iftreae in cash and cash .quivalsts
Cash and @5h equivalents.r tne b.gin.ing of the ye.r

74,012)

15,'17,78,885

1,84,7r,116
(68,273)

14,a1751)

(5,s5,08,1t7)
(59,5r,,135)

Q,71 ,41 ,1?5)
(2,r1,1r,111)

11,15,'o3
(12,26,898)

(1,,r2,230)

61,21,995

75,4t,7O,561
(8,74,651)

74,?1 ,15,911

(1,50,91,,196)

?a,n,vt)

(i,75,59,059)

(5,15,r0,099)
23,51,1{,601
(5,27,60,392)

(2' ,24,72,5011

57,119

1O,49,22,6U

(26,,r2,3a9)

7,n,43,@5

61,11,245
17,17,018

(83,06,821)

11,59,57,086
1,85,335

55,92,271

10,57,,r9,r18
(5,41,rM)

30,52,OA,Or4

(5,m,,r?,366)

(5,r7.651)

125,27,169)

(5,14,@,655)

25,38,65,a91
(5,59,92,521)

126,16,7o,677)

(73,6r,119)
79,1O,138

carh and <ash equivalens.t the end of th. y..r
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2.1

Starlite LightinS Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended ,rtarch 31, 2021

Corporate information
Startite Lighting Limited ('the Company) is a pubtic Company domicited in lndia. The Company has been incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act appticabLe in lndia. The Company's registered offjce is tocated at Gat No. 423-426,
Mumbai- Agra Highway, Wadivarhe,lgatpuri, Nashik-422 403. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing
of Water heater, Mixers, BLenders and LED tamps. During the year, the Company has discontinued the business of
manutacturing Air conditioners.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principtes generatty
accepted in lndia inctuding lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2011
("the Act") read with Rute 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historicat cost measurement, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair vatue (refer accounting poticy regarding financiat instruments)

These financial statements were authorized for issue by a resotution of the directors on May 14, 2021.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies foltowed in the preparation of lnd AS Financiat Statements are consistent with the previous year.

Current versus non-current clasSification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current classificatjon. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in the normal operating cycte
- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be reatised within twelve months after the reF,orttng period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settte a tiability for at least twetve months

after the reporting period

Atl other assets are classified as non-current.

A tiabitity is treated as current when :

- lt is expected to be settted in the normal operating cycle
- lt is hetd primarjty for the purpose of trading
- lt is due to be settLed within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting

The Company classifies att other liabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are ctassified as non-current assets and liabitities.

The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and cash
equivatents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycte as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current
cLassification of assets and liabitities.

b. Foreign currencies
The lnd AS financial statements are presented jn lNR, which is atso the Companys functtonat currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initiatty recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

ffiq.rt/ I \ \r



llonetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currencies are transtated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on restatement / setttement of monetary items are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediatety.

c. Fair Yalue measurement

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to sett an asset or paid to transfer a tiabitity in an orderty transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vatue measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sett the asset or transfer the tiabitity takes ptace either;

- ln the principat market for the asset or tiabitity, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabitity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessibte by the Company.

A fair vatue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's abitity to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by setting it to another market participant that \4,ould
use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
avaitable to measure fair vatue, maximising the use of retevant observabte inputs and minimising the use of
unobservabte inputs.

Att assets and tiabilities for which fair vatue is measured or disctosed in the financia[ statements are categorised vJithin
the fair vatue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signif]cant to the fair vatue
measurement as a Y/hote:

- Level 'l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabitities
- Level 2 - Vatuation techniques for \,{hich the lowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directty or indirectty observabte
- Levet 3 " Valuation techniques for which the lovvest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservabte

For the purpose of fair vatue disctosures, the Company has determined ctasses of assets and tiabitities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or tiabitity and the tevel of the fair vatue hierarchy as explained aboye.

ln determinjng the fair vatue of its financiats instruments, the Company uses a variety of methodr and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair yatue
inctudes discounted cash flows anatysis, avaitabte quoted market prices and deater quotes. Att methods of assessing fair
vatue resutt from generat approximation of vatue and the same may differ from the actuat vatue realised.

d. Revenue from contract with customer

l. Sale of goods

The Company's principal source of revenue from contracts with customers comprise sate of consumer products in the
domestic and overseas markets. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consr'deration to which the Company expects to be entitted
in exchange for those goods. The Company has concluded that it is generatly the principal in its revenue arrangements,
because it typically controts the goods before transferring them to the customer. Revenue from sate of goods is
recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred, generatty on detivery of goods to the customer
primarity on ex-works basis.

Variable consideration
lf the consideration in a contract includes a variabte amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
t{hich it witl be entitted in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer, The variabte consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained untit it is highty probable that a significant revenue reversat in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised wi[[ not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variabte consideration is
subseouentlv resolved.



e.

Significant financing component
ln few cases, the Company may receive short-term advances from its customers. Using the practicat expedient in lnd A5
115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to
the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or [ess.

Contract balances

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, lf the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade recelYables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., onty the passage

of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting poticies of financial assets in
section (m) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities
A contract tiabitity is the obtigation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consjderation (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. lf a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract tiabitity is recognised when the payment is made, or
the payment is due (whichever is eartier). Contract tiabitities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract.

The Company does not have material contract assets or contract tiabitities.

ll. lnterest income
lnterest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding using the effective
interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financiat instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financiat asset or to the amortised cost of a financiat liabitity.

lll. DiYidends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receiye the payment is estabtished, which is generatty when
sharehotders approve the dividend.

Taxe5
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantivety enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxabte
income.

Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss are recognised as a part of these items (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction
either in OCI or directty in equity. The manaSement periodicatty evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which appticabte tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estabtishes proyisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabitities and their carrying amounts for financia( reporting purposes at the reporting date.



Deferred tax tiabilities are recognird for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax tiabitity
arises from the initial recognition of goodwitl or an asset or tiability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or [oss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxable profit ]vitt be available against which the deductibte
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax tosses can be utitised. However, no
deferred tax asset is recognised for temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset or tiabitity in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
tonger probable that sufficient taxabte profit wilt be avaitabte to attow att or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probabte that future taxabte profits witt attow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is
reatised or the tiabitity is settLed, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or jn equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction
either in OCI or directty in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities are offset if a tegally enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabitities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authority.

Goods and service tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Service Tax (GST), except:
. When the GST incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverabte from the taxation authority, in which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as

appticabte

. When receivabtes and payabtes are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of goods and service tax recoverabte from, or payable to, the taxation authority is inctuded as part of
other assets or other tiabitities in the Batance Sheet.

f. Property, plant and equipment

Capitat work in p.ogress is stated at cost, net of accumutated impairment [oss, if any. Property, ptant and equipment ]s

stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment tosses, if any. Such cost inctudes the cost
of reptacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of ptant and equipment are required to be reptaced at intervats, the Company
depreciates them separatety based on their specific usefut tives. Likewise, \,/hen a major inspection is performed, its
cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the ptant and equipment as a reptacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Att other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation on property, ptant and equiprnent is provided on straight-line method as per usefut tife prescribed in
khedute ll of the Companies Act, 2013.

A5sets
Buitdin95
- Factory buitdings
- Other buitdings
Plant and machinery
Electrical instattations
Furniture and Fixture
Office equipments
Vehictes
Computers

Useful life

30 years

60 years
'15 years

10 years

10 years

5 years

8 years

3 yearsia
Stililccq



An item of property, ptant and equipment and any significant part initialty recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposat. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposat proceeds and the carryins amount of the asset) is inctuded
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, ptant and equipment are reviewed at each
financiat year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Company has etected to continue with the carrying vatue for att of its property, ptant and equipment as recognised
in the previous GMP financial statements on transition to lnd A5, measured as per the previous GMP and u5e that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition.

lntangible assets
lntangibte assets acquired separatety are measured on initiat recognition at cost. The cost of intangibte assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair vatue at the date of acquisition. Fottowing initiat recognition, intangibte assets
are carried at cost less any accumutated amortisation and accumutated impairment tosses. lnternatty generated
intangibles, exctuding capitalised devetopment costsr are not capitatised and the related expenditure is reftected in
profjt or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

lntangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the usefut economic tife and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangibte asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intanglbte asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modjfy the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes jn accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangibte as5ets with finite tives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangibte asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised-

The Company has etected to continue with the carrying value for att of its property, ptant and equipment as recognised
in the financiat statements on transition to lnd A5, measured as per the previous GMP and use that a5 its deemed cost
as at the date of transition.

The useful lives of intangibte assets are as mentioned betow:

Nature of intangible asset
Computer Software

l ethod of amortisation
Straight tine basis over its usefut tife not exceeding 3 years

g. Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directty attributabte to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarity takes a
substantiat period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset, Att
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Eorrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also inctudes exchange differences
to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borroy/ing costs.

h. Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to controt the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

When the company is the lessee:
The Company appl.ies a singte recognition and measurement approach for atl leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises tease tiabitities to make tease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the undertying assets.

R}
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a. Right-of-use assets:
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the undertying asset
is avaitable for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, tess any accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease tiabitities. The cost of right-of-use assets jncludes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs jncurred, and tease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-tine ba5is over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated usefut tives of the assets, as follows:

LeasehoLd tand
Ptant and machinery

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

95 years

5 years

b. Lease liabilitles:
At the commencement date of the tease, the Company recognises lease tiabilitjes measured at the present vatue of tease
payments to be made over the tease term.

ln catcutating the present vatue of Lease payments, the Company uses its incrementat borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date becaus€ the interest rate impticit in the tease is not readjly determinabte. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease tiabitities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying amount of tease Uabitities is remeasured jf there is a modt'fication, a
change in the tease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resutting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
undertyinc asset.

lnventories
lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reaLisabte vatue.

Costs jncurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as fo[ows:
- Raw materiats, packing materiat and consumables: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present tocation and condition. cost is determined on weighted Average Method.

- work-in'progress and finished goods: cost includes direct materjats and tabour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normatoperating capacity. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Method.

Net reatisable value is the estimated selting price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sate.

lmpairment of non-flnancial assetr
The Company assesses, at each reportr'ng date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. lf any
indication exists, or when annuat impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset,s
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit,s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposat and its vatue in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, untess the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largety independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, the asset is considered impaired and is \.vritten
down to its recoverabte amount.

ln assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. ln
determining fair value less costs of disposat, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate vatuation modet is used-

lmpairment losses, inctuding impairment on property, ptant and equipment and inventories, are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For property, plant and equipment and intangibte assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting
date to determine whether there is an indication that previousty recognised impairment tosses no tonger exist or have
decreased. lf such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset,s or CGU,5 A previousty
recognised impairment loss is reyersed only if there has been a change in the assumpttons asset'5
recoverabte amount since the tast impairment toss was recognised. The reversat is timited
the asset does not exceed its recoverabte amount, nor amount
net of depreciation, had no impairment toss been
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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k. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (legat or constructive) as a resutt of a past event, it
is probabte that an outflow of resources embodying economic b€nefits wiLl be required to settte the obligation and a
retiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obtigation. When the Company expects some or atl of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtuatty certain. The expense relating to a provjsion is presented in the statement of profit
and toss net of any reimbursement.

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is materiat, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reftects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the tiabitity. when discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a fjnance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each batance sheet date,

Retlrement and other employee benefits
Alt emptoyee benefits payabte whotty within twetve months are ctassified as short term emptoyee benefits. Benefits such
as saLarjes, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc. and the expected cost of tronus, ex-
gratja are recognjsed during the period in which the emptoyee renders related service.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when emptoyees have rendered
the service entitting them to the contribution. Emptoyee benefits in the form of contribution to provident Fund managed
by Government Authorities, Employees State lnsurance Corporation and Labour wetfare Fund are considered as defjned
contribution plan and the 5ame is charged to the statement of profit and toss for the year when the empLoyees render
retated services and the contributions to the respective funds are due.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratujty ptan in lndia.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined usjng the projected unt't credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuariat gains and tosses, the effect of the asset ceiting, excLuding amounts included jn
net interest on the net defined benefit tiabitity and the return on pLan assets (exctudjng amounts inctuded in net inter6t
on the net defined benefit tiabitity), are recognised immediatety in the batance sheet with a correspondtng debit or
credit to the retained earning5 through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not rectassified to
profit or toss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in proftt or loss on the eartier of:
- The date of the ptan amendment or curtaitment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calcutated by apptying the discount rate to the net defined benefit tiabitity or asset. The Company
'Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtaitments and non-routjne
- Net interest expense or income

Long.term employee benefits:
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
emptoyee renders the retated seMces are recognised as a tiabitity at the present vatue of the obligation at the batance
sheet date. The resultant actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and Loss.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entity and a financjal tiabitity or equity
instrument of another entity.

f(,
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through profit or toss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the Purchases or sales
of financial assets that require detivery of assets withjn estabtished by in the
market place (regutar way trades) are recognised
purchase or selt the asset.
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Subseque nt measut ement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financjal assets are ctassjijed in fottowing categories:
. Financial assets at amortised cost
. Financial assets including derivatives at fajr vatue through profit or toss (FVTPL)
. Financiat assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Finoncial osset ot omortised cost
A 'financial asset' is measured at the amortised cost if both the followjng conditions are met:

a)The asset is hetd wjthin a business modet whose objective is to hold assets for cotLecting contractuaLcash ftows, and
b) Contractuat terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are sotely payments of principaL and
interest (SPPI) on the principat amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integrat part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance jncome in the profit or toss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or [oss. This category generatty appUes to trade and other
receivabtes, loans and other financial assets.

Finonciol Assets ot FVIOCI
A'financiat asset'is cLassified as at the FVTOCI jf both of the fo[owing criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by cottecting contractual cash flows and selLing the financiat
assets, and

b) The asset's contractuatcash flows represent SPPI.

Findnciol asset ot FVTPL
FVTPL is a residuat category for financiaL asset. Any financiaL asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is ctassified as at ryTPL.

ln addition, the Company may etect to desiqnate a financiat asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such etection is altowed onty if doing so reduces or etiminates a measurement or
recognjtjon inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at ryTPL.

Derecogoition
A financial asset (or, where appticabte, a part oi a financial asset or part of a Company of simitar financiat assets) is
pn'marity derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's Batance Sheet) when:
- The rights to receive cash ftows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from the asset or has assumed an obLigation to pay the
received cash ftows jn futl without materiat detay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantiatly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantiatty alt the rjsks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantiatly att of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred controt of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing invotvement. ln that
case, the Company atso recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiability are measured
on a basis that reftects the rights and obtigations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company coutd be required to
repay.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the date
of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in the statement of profit and toss.
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lmpoiment ol linonciol ossets
ln accordance wjth lnd AS'109, the Company applies expected credit toss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the foltowing financiat assets and credit rjsk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt jnstruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securjties, deposits,
trade receivabtes and bank balance.

b)Trade receivabtes or any contractual right to receive cash or another financiat asset that resutt from transactions that
are within the scope of lnd AS '115.

The Company foltows 'simptified approach'for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivabtes.
The apptication of simptified approach does not requr're the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss altowance based on tifetime ECLs at each reportjng date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment toss on other financial assets and rjsk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk sjnce initiat recognition. lf credit risk has not increased
significantty, tweLve month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantty,
lifetime ECL is used. lf, in a subsequent period, credit quaLity of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment toss
altowance based on twetve month ECL.
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possibLe defautt events over the expected tife of a financiat
instrument. The twelve month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuLts from default events that are possibte
within twetve months after the reporting date.
ECL is the difference between atl contractual cash ftorrys that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and att the cash ftows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. net of alt cash shortfatts), discounted at the originat ElR.
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the financiaL instrument (inctuding prepayment, extension, catt and simitar options) over the
expected life of the financiat instrument. However, in rare cases \,vhen the expected tife of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliabty, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractuat term of the financiat
instrument-

- Cash ftows from the sate of cottateral hetd or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practicat expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on its trade
receivables. The provisjon matrix is based on its historjcatty observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivabtes and is adjusted for for'/vard-tooking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed defautt rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss altowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recorded in the statement of profit and loss.
The amount is reftected under the head Other expenses / income'in the statement of profit and toss.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired financiaL assets, i.e. financjal assets which are
credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial llabilities

lnitiol recognition and meosutement
Financiat tiabitities are classified, at initiat recognition, as financiat liabitities at fair value through profit or [oss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Att financiat tiabitities are recognised injtially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payabtes, net of
directty attributabte transaction costs.

The Company's fioanciat liabilities trade and other payabtes, loans and borrowjngs inctuding bank overdrafts and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent meosurement
The measurement of financiat tiabilities depends on their ctassification, as described betow:

-<(.^
lNlatt'XA')E
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Financiol liobilities ot loit vdlue thrcugh prolit or loss
Financiat liabitities at fair value through profit or toss inctude financiat tiabitities hetd for trading and financiat tiabititie5
designated upon initiat recognitjon as at fair vatue through profit or loss. Financial tiabilities are ctassified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing jn the near term. This category atso inctudes derivative
iinancial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge retationships
as defined by lnd AS '109. Separated embedded derivatives are atso classified as heLd for trading untess they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profjt or toss.

Fjnanciat tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition at fair vatue through profit or toss are designated as such at the
initiat date of recognition, and only if the criteria jn lnd AS 109 are satisfied. The Company does not have any financial
tiabilities which are held for trading. Nor it has desigoated any financiat liabiLity as FVTPL.

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most retevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-beanng loans and borrowjngs are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or toss when the
tiabilities are derecognised as wett as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caLculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profjt and [oss.

This category generally appties to borrowings, trade payables and other financial tiabitities.

Derecognition
A financiat tiability is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is discharged or canceLted or expires. When an
existing financiat tiabitity is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantialty different terms, or the terms of
an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new Liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or to5s.

O|lsetting of linon ial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet if there is a
currentty enforceabte tegat right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
reatise the assets and settte the tiabitities simuttaneousty.

Government Srants and subsidies
Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonabte assurance that (i) the company wjtt
comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy witt be received.

When the grant or subsidy retates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit
and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the retated costs, which they are intended to compensate.
Where the grant reLates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and reteased to income in equal amounts over
the expected urfut tife of the retated asset.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivatent in the Batance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
originat maturity of three months or [ess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.
For the purpose of the statement of cash ftows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integrat part of the Company's cash
management,

Earnings per share
The Company's Earnings per Share ('EPs') is determined based on the net profit attributabte to the shareholders'of the
Company. The Company disctoses EPS before and after exceptionat items.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing totat profit or toss for the period, attributabte to equity sharehotders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Dituted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and ditutive
during the year inctuding share based payments, except where the resutt woutd be anti-diLutive.

GATT lln. \4
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q. Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those items that management considers, by virtue of their size or incidence, should be disctosed
separately to ensure that the financiat information allows a better understanding of the underlying performance of the
business in the year and facititates more appropriate comparison wr'th prior periods. ExceptionaI items are adjusted in
arriving at profit before tax.

Preference shares
Preference shares, which are mandatority redeemabte on a specific date, are ctassified as tiabitities. The dividends on
these preference shares are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance exp€nse,

f,

s. Contingent liabilities
A contingent tiabitity is a possibte obtigation that arises from past events and whose existence witl be confirmed onty by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whotty within the control of the Company
or a present obtigation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outftow of resources witl be required to
settte the obligation. A contingent tiabitity atso arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liabitity that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured retiabty. The Company does not recognize a contingent tiabitity but discloses
it in the financiat statements, unless the possibility of an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

2.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financiaI statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disctosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resutt in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or tiabilities affected in future periods.

a. lmpairment allowance for trade receivables
The Company makes altovvances for doubtful accounts receivabte using a simptified approach which is a duat poticy of an
ageing based provision and historicat / anticipated customer experience. Management betieves that this simptified
mode( ctosely represents the expected credit toss modet to be apptied on financiat assets as prer lnd AS 109. Refer note
5(a) for disclosure relating to impairment atlov{ance on trade recejvabtes.

b. Employee benefits
The cost of the defjned benefit gratuity ptan is determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial vatuation invotves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual devetopments in the future. The5e inctude the determination of
the discount rate, future satary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities invotved in the vatuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obtigation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. At[ assumptions are
reYiewed at each reporting date. The mortatity rate is based on pubticty avaitabte mortatity tabtes. Those mortatity
tabtes tend to change onty at intervat in response to demographic changes. Future satary increases are based on
expected future inftation rates. Further detaits about gratuity obtigations are given in note 14.

c. Taxes
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognisedr
based upon the likety timing and the [eye( of future taxable profits together with future tax ptanning strategies. ln the
absence of probabte future taxable profit, the Company has restricted recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of
deferred tax tiability (refer note 6).

d. C,oing concern
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company witl continue as a going concern in a
foreseeable future (refer note 33),
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended l4a.ch 31, 2021

a. Equity share capital (refer note 11)

Particulars
March 31, 2021

RuDees

March 31, 2020
Rupees

At the beqinninq of the year 12.50.00.000 12,s0,00,000
At the end of the year 't2,50,00,000 '12,50,00,000

b. Other equity (refer note '12)

Particulars
Reserves and surplus

Total
Capital Securities Retained earnings

Balance as at April '1, 2019
Loss for the period

Other comDrehensive jncome (net)

6,46,11,457 3,50,00,000 (2,7 5 ,19 ,3O ,669\
(49,29,04,6451

134,24,496\

(2,65 ,23 ,18 ,8121
(49 ,29 ,O4 ,645)

(34,24,4961

Total comprehensive income 69 .63 .29 .141 (49.63.29.1411

Balance as at March 31, 2020 6,46,11 ,857 3,50,00,000 (3,24,8?,59,810) (3,14,86,47 ,9531

Loss for the period
Other comDrehensive income (net)

(49 ,14 ,70,042)
(14,15.032)

(49 ,34 ,7O ,O42)
('14.15.032)

Total comprehensive income G9 .48 .85 .O7 4\ t49 .48 .85 .07 4\
Balance as at March 31, 2021 6,46,11,857 3,50,00,000 (3,74,31,44,4841 (3.64.35.33.027)

Summary of signjficant accounting policies ?.1
The accompanyinS notes are an integral part of the lnd AS fjnancjal statements

As per our report of even date

FoTSRBC&COLLP
lCAl Firm No.: 324982E/E300003
Chartered
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Partner
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 5: Financial assets

5(a) Trade receivables (current)

Particulars l'{arch 31, 2021
Rupees

March 31 , 2020
Rupees

Trade receivables from unretated parties
- Considered good
- Receivabtes - credit impaired

Receivables from related parties (considered good)(refer note 28)

Less: Atlowances for doubtfuI debts

3,81 ,99,4-14

71,46,17,055

13 ,68 ,42 ,237
1,95,59,563

12 28,04,'t72
25 ,28 ,1 6 ,469 27,92,05,972

(1,95,59,563)
Total trade receivables 25,28,16,469 25,96,46,4O9

There are no trade receivabtes which are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severatty or jointty with any
person.

Trade receivabtes are non interest bearing and are generatty on terms of 15 to 90 days.

Trade receivabtes are ptedged against borrowings, the detaits relating to which have been described in note '13(a) and note
13(b).

5(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
March 31,2021

Rupees
March 3'l , 2020

Rupees

Batances with banks - in current accounts
Cash on hand

76,18,887
7,578

56,090

1 ,029
Total cash and cash equivalents 76,21,465 57,119

Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Alarch 31, 2021

5(c) Other financial assets
Unsecured (Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Ltarch 31, 2021Rupees ilarch 31, 2020Rupees
Non-current Current Non-Current Current

Deposits with originat maturity of more than
twetve months (refer note a)

Security deposits (refer note b)
lnterest receivable
Receivable towards lndustriaI Promotion
Subsidy under PSl, 2007

Others

1,03,80,549

31,36,2't2

9,08,64, 108

1 ,94,85,545
2,41,273

3,77,74,635

24,69,241

99,79,O82

2,N,65,9-77

6,79,80,857
2,30,9?8

2,38,82,794

Total other financial assets 10,43,80,869 5,94,70,694 9,79,75,916 2,41,13,722

Property, ptant and

Note a: The aforesaid fjxed deposits are agajnst tetter of credit and bank guarantee.

equipment taken on lease.



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 6: Deferred tax assets

The Company has the fottowing carry forward of business loss and unabsorbed depreciation. However, in the
absence of probabitity of future taxabte profit it has not recognised deferred tax asset.

The

expiry depreciation.

Since the Company has not recognised net deferred tax asset, tax reconciliation as required by lnd AS is not
given.

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Fixed assets : lmpact of difference between tax depreciation
/ amortization charqed for the financiat r 2,65,80,599 4,02,68,306

2,65,80,599

Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtfut debts & warranty
lmpact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and Loss in
current year but attowed for tax purposes
Losses avaitable for offsetting against future taxable income

37 ,84,465
1 ,03 ,48,200

1 ,24,47,934

90,75,769

90,54,865

2,21,37,672
Deferred tax asset to the extent of 2,65,80,599 4,02,68,306

Particulars March 31, 2021
Rupees

March 31, 2020
Rupees

Business loss

Unabsorbed depreciation
1,80,45,88,388
1 ,39,53,71 ,472

1 ,21 ,99,74,960
1,26,58,40,506

Total 3,19,99,59,860 2,48,58,15,466

detaits of of business loss is as under:
Year of loss Amount Expiry

2014-7015
2015-2016
7017-2018
2018-7019
2019-2020
2020-2021

70?1-2022

3,14,26,869
7,47,82,605

11,16,97,012
30,91 ,87 ,242
48 ,46 ,85 ,084
51 ,44,77,771
32,83,32.355

2072-7023

2073-7074
2025-7026
2026-2077

2027-7028
2028-2029

2029.2030
Total 1,80,45,88,388
There is no for unabsorbed

s



Startite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended i4arch 31, ?O?1

Note 7: Advance income tax (net)

Note 8: Other non-current assets
Unsecured (Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: lnventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

During the year ended March 31, 2021, an amount of Rs. 38,625,116 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 14,294,194) was
recognized as an expense towards provision for slow moving inventories.

lnventories have been pledged as security against bank borrowings, the detaits retating to which have been
described in Note 13(a) and 13(b).

Note 10: Other current assets
Unsecured (Considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31,2020

Rupees
lncome tax asset (net) 16,51 ,322 7,76,669
Total advance income tax (net) 16,51 ,322 7,76,669

Particulars
March 31, 202'l

Rupees
March 31 , 2020

Rupees

CapitaI advances 58,47 ,657 1,11 ,61 ,464
TotaI other non-current assets 58,47,657 1,11,61,464

Particulars
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31, 2020

Rupees
Raw materials
(inctuding goods in transit of Rs.

Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stores and spares
Packing and other materiaI

75,342,276 (March 31 , 2020 Rs.

76,59 ,43,094

3,95,77 ,370
7,U,74,945

47 ,70,633
2.67.36.195

24 41

4,64,71 ,765
2,36,37,181

56,38,433
2.06.79 .554

Total inventories 35,7 4,52,737 34,O5,69,215

Particulars
,r{arch 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31,2020

Rupees
Advances to supptiers
Advance to others
Prepaid expenses
Batances with government authorities

65,76,786
6,78,826

71 ,01 ,044
9,5'l ,25,337

67,04,270
9,39,599

43,77,814
6,91 ,90,879

Total other current assets 10,44,81,993 8,11,62,562



starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Llarch 31, 2021

Note 'l l : Equity share capital

Particulars March 31 , 2021
Rupees

March 31, 2020
RuDees

Authorised
102,500,000 (March 31, 2020: 57,500,000) shares of Rs.10 each 1 ,02,50,00,000 57,50,00,000

lssued, subscribed and fully paid-up
12,500,000 (March 31, 2020: 12,500,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 12,50,00,000 12,50,00,000

'12.50.00.oo0 12,50,00,000

a. Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars
l'{arch 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31, 2020

Rupees

No, of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning and end of the year '1,25,00,000 12,s0,00,000 1,25,00,000 12,50,00,000

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one ctass of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each hotder of equity shares is entitted to one
vote per share. During the year ended trlarch 3'1, 2021, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to equity
sharehotdeB was Rs. Nit (lriarch 31, 2020: Rs. Nit)

Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors of the Company is subject to approyal of the sharehotders at the Annuat Generat
Meeting.

ln the eYent of tiquidation of the Company, the hotders of the equity shares witt be entitled to recejve remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of at( preferential amounts. The distribution wilt be in proportion to the number of equjty shares hetd by
the sharehotders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares in the Company:

Name of shareholder
March 31, 2O21

Rupees
March 3'l , 2o2o

Rupees
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding

Arvind Bharati
Ravindra Bharati
M/s Bajaj Etectricats Limited
M/s Jamnatat E Sons

M/s Startite Components Limited

7,07,5@
25,60,000
58,75,000
16,25,000
6,87,500

5.62
20.48
47.@
13.00
5.50

7,02,5N
25,60,000
58,75,000
16,25,000
6,87,500

5.62
20.48

47.@
13.00

5.50

d.

e.

No shares were attotted as futty paid'up pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash during the year of five years
immediatety preceding the date of the batance sheet

There are no shares reserved for issue under options.



(i)

(ii)

Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 12 : Other equity

. Capitat Reserve has been created on account toans waived off by the banks in the year 2006-2007. The
distribution of the amount wit[ be subject to the restrictions ptaced by the companies Act, 2013

' Securities premium account has been created on account of 400,000 shares issued to Bajaj Etectricats
Limited in the year 2007-2008 at a premium of Rs. 8.75 per share. The amount can be used for the purpose
stated 'in section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). lt is not avaitabte for distribution to
sharehotders.

The above reserves wit[ be utitised in accordance with the provisions of the companies Act, 2013.

(iii )

Particulars March 31, 2021
Rupees

March 3'l , 2020
Rupees

CapitaI reserve
Securities premium
Retained earnings

6,46,11 ,857
3,50,00,000

(3 ,7 4 ,31 ,44 ,8841

6,46,11 ,857
3,50,00,000

(3,24,82,59,8'10)
Total other equity (3,64,35,33,027) (3,14,86,47,953)

Capital reserve
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31 , 2020

Rupees
Opening and ctosing batance- 6,46,11 ,857 6,46,11,857

Securities premium
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31,2020

Rupees
Opening and ctosing batance" 3,50,00,000 3,50,00,000

Retained earnings
March 31,2021

Rupees
March 31, 2020

Rupees
Opening batance
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income/ (toss)

(3,24,82,59,810)
(49 ,34 ,70 ,042)

(14,15,O32\

12,75,19 ,3O,669)
(49 ,29 ,04,645\

(34,24,496\
Closing balance (3,74,31 ,44,884) (3,24,82,59,810)



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended ilarch 31, 2021

Note t 3(a): Long term borrowings

March 31,2O2'l ,2020
Current

Debenturer (secured)
Debentures
Less: tlnarnortised toan processing charges

Non-convertible preference shares (unsecured)
10,000,000 91 Redeemable preference shares
5,000,000 9S Redeemabte preference Jhare5
30,000,000 Redeemable preference shares

Term loan from banks (secured)

Term loan from related party (unsecured)
(refer noie 28)

Sales tax deferral loan luns€cured)

12,15,36,523 87 ,93,45,424
(24.89.8611

69,98,44,260 1,00,66,22,581

32,15,16,523

'18,26,34,U2

8,71,46,959
6',1 ,81 ,12,756

4,59,16,67

87,68,55,661

1,11,52,500

94,40,00,000

4.64-507

69,98,44,760

16,69,14,8%
7,52,58,99

56,49,08,176

4.64.501

1,00,66.22,581

22,@,@,000

7.20.04
'1 ,?5,25 ,17 ,767 1,83,26,72,668 1.50.73.90.826 1,22,73,42,621

Amount dis.tosed under the head "Other financiat
liabilities' (refer note lSlc)t

(1,81,26,72,668) (1 ,72,73,42,621)

Total lonq term borrowinqs 1 ,25,25,47 ,7 67 r,50,73,90,828

The debentures are secured by first pari passu charge over movable and immovabLe fixed assets of the Company.

(b) Preference shares
,0,000,000 . 9% cumutative redeemable preference shares redeemabte on June 30, 2024
5,000,000 - 9% cumutative redeemable preference shares redeemabte on June 30, 2025
30,000,000 - oft red€emable preference shares redeemable in I equal tranches at an yietd of 10% on June 10, 2026, June 30, 2027 and June
30, 2028 respectively.

(c) Term loan lrom b.nks
The Company has availed terh loan from State Bank of lndia under Government of lndia's 'Emergency Line of Credit Scheme for the purpose
of meeting the working capital requirements, operating tiabilities and restart operations once lockdown is over. The said Loan is setured by
prjmary and coltateral Securities including mortgages created in the favour of bank. The loan carries interest of Exteanal Benchhark Linked
Rate (EBLR) + 0.751 i.e. 7.210% p.a. and maximum of 9.25x p.a. during entire tenor of [oan. lnterest i5 applied at monthty intervats. The toan
is repayabte after a moratorium period of 12 rnonths and is repayabte in 16 monthly jnstatments after noratorjum.

(d) Lo.ns from related p.rty
The unsecuGd loan is from Bajai ElectricaLs Limited and carrie5 an interest rate of MCLR + 1.75I and 10.10* p.a. fixed (March 31, 2020 :
MCLR + ,.75%).

(e) Sales tax deferr.l loan
The sales tax deferrat loan js payabte in 5 yearty instatments.

ffim
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March 11,2021 March 31, 2020

From banks (secured)
Cash credit

Working capital loan (secured)

BiU dis€ounting (with recourse)

Loans from related party (un5€cured) (refer note 28)

27 ,21 ,70,441

7 4,89,91 ,136

6,98,10,611

76,51 ,19,486

28,33,34,U9

65,79,87,748

15,14,41,158

65,16,U,224

Total short term borrowings 1.85.61.11-674 1,74,64,49,979

Note 13(b) : Short term borrowings

(.) Secured loans ,rom bankg
The loans are secured against itock, book debts, other receivables, property, ptant and equipmenr and cottateral security given by Bajaj
Electricats Limited. The rate of interest 8.95X to 10X ( arch 3i, 2020 : 8.85X to tO*).

(b) Working capital loan
The borro\ /ing is for working capjtal purpose against book debts, other receivables, property, plant and equipment and comfort letter of
Bajaj Electricals Limited and wjth charge over stock and receivables for a period of 12 months (yearty renewal). The rate of interest on these
Loans range from 7.2()% to 12.00% (t^arch 31, 2020 : 8.16 to 11.80X).

(c) Bill dLcounting (with recourse)
The discounting facitity is avaited from bank and fjnanciat institution with recourse. The discounting charges are in the range of 10% to 10.85*
(March ll, 2020: 8.65% to 11.75X).

(c) ljnsecured loan from related party
The unsecured toan is from Bajaj Etectricats Limited and is repayable on demand. The rate of interest is MCLR ptus ,.75% to t 1X fixed (March
11,2020: MCLR + 1.75%).

Note t3(c): Other fln.ncial liabilities (current)

Note 1l(d): Trade payables

Trade payabtes (except Baiaj Electricats Ljmited) are non.interest b€aring and generaLly have a paym€nt term of 15 to 180 days. tn case of
Baia, EtectricaLs Limited, no interest is payable in case payrnent is made within 45 days.

I

arch 3r,2021 March 31,2020

current maturities of long term debt [refer note ,3 (a)]

lnterest accrued and due on borrowings
tiabitity for capital good5
Employee retated liabiUties
Outstanding liabilities

- Labour charges
' Audit fees
' Others

1 ,81,26,72,668
90,60,861

1,17, ,a17

65,97,U7
18,50,000

1,10,78,882

1 ,22,73,42,621
r,1t,09,228

16,4,4m
1,14,51,176

64,15,000
13,00,000
60,05,173

Total other financiat tiabitities 1 ,87 ,30,46,a75 1,26,54.86.598

Llarch 31, 2021 A arch 31,2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises (refer note 14)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mjcro enterpris€s and small enterprise
Trade payabLes to retated parties (refer note 28)

9,96,70,814

19,01,28,681
26,07,U8

8,16,84,973

19,O5,41,857
1,12,55,369

19,77,35,729 20,17.99.226

Total tred€ payables 29 ,24,06,542 24,34,84,199

lq(.^



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, ?021

Note 14: Provisions

Particulars
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31,2020

Rupees
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Employee benefit obligations
Leave obtigation
Gratuity (refer note 29)

Others
Provision for warranty

2,15,26,116
1 ,43,U,424

6,9?.,716

1,45,55,635

1 ,69 ,95,681

1,46,16,672
8,75,761

1 ,53,47,240
Total provisions 2,15,26,116 7,96,12,775 1,69,95,681 3,08,39,673

Provision for warranty
Warranty costs are provided on a technical estimate of costs required to be incurred for repairs, reptacements,
material used as per past experience in respect of warranty costs. lt is expected that this expenditure witt be
incurred over the contractuaI warranty period.

movement in the above are summarised betow :

Particulars March 31,2021
Rupees

March 31 , 2020
Rupees

Opening balance

- Provision created
- Provision utilized

1 ,53,47 ,240

1,57,93,759
(1,65,85,363)

2,76,94,665

2,04,85,562
(3,28,32,987]'

Closing balance 1,45,55,635 1 ,53,47 ,240

Note 15 : Other current liabilities

Particutars March 31, 2021
Rupees

March 31,2020
Ruoees

Statutory dues
- Emptoyee related liabitities
- TDS payabte
- Others

18,50,649
21,42,287

4,494

70,60,248
20,7 4,918

4,495

Total other current liabilities 39,97 ,430 41 ,39,661

s
rt le
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 16: Revenue from operations

Note 16.1 : Disaggregated revenue information
Set out betow is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Timing of

Note 16.2: Contract balances

Trade receivabtes are non interest bearing and are generatty on terms of '15 to 90 days.

Note 16.3: Performance obligation
The performance obtigation is satisfied upon detivery of consumer products to the customer. The contract
atso contains warranties for fixing the defects that existed at the time to sate to the customers.

Note 17: Other income

Particulars
March 31 , 2021

Rupees
fiarch 31, 2020

Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers
Other operating revenue

1,74,55,1?,991
6,45,06,806

1,66,67,74,897
6,21 ,80,725

Total 1,81,OO,19,797 '1,72,89,55,622

Particulars
March 31,202'l

Rupees
March 31 , 2020

Rupees

lndia
Outside lndia

1,71,67 ,50,771
2,87 ,62,220

't ,62,72,40,435
3,95,34,462

Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,74,55,1?.,991 1,66,67,74,897

revenue

Particulars
[{arch 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31, 2020

Rupees

Goods transferred at a point in time 1,74,55,12,99'l 't,66,67,74,897
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,74,55,12,991 1,66,67,74,897

Particulars
March 31, 2021

Rupees
March 31, 2020

Rupees

Trade receivabLes 25 ,28 ,1 6 ,469 ?5 ,96 ,46 ,409
Total 25 ,28 ,1 6 ,469 25,96,46,409

Particulars March 31 , 2021
Rupees

March 31, 2020
Rupees

lnterest income
Foreign exchange difference (net)
Gain on sate of property, ptant and equipment

40,8?,751
40,03,4',t8

68.273

26,42,889
28,39,805

Total 81,54,442 54,82,694

s



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3.1, 202.1

Note '18(a): Cost of materials consumed

Note '18(b): Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods

Note '19: Employee benefit expense

Note 20: Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars lvtarch 3 1, 2021

Rupees
March 31 , 2020

Rupees
Raw materiats at the beginningrcf the year
Add: Purchases

Add: Freight lnward
Less: Provision for impairment loss
Less: Raw material at the end of the year

74,41,47,78',1

1 ,35,75,32,710
1 ,26,72,749
2,33,85,1 33

?6 ,59 ,43 ,094

?6,60,36,261
't ,30,17 ,30,720

't,27 ,34,994
59,14,622

74,41 ,47,781
Total cost of material consumed 1,32,00,74,513 1,33,04,39,572

Particulars March 31,2021
Rupees

March 31,2020
Rupees

Opening balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

4,64,71 ,265
2,16,32,180

5,41,35,083
4,'t't,56,319

Total opening balance

Closing balance
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

7 ,01 ,O3,445

3,95,27 ,370
2,04,74,944

9 ,52,91 ,402

4,64,71,265
2,36,32,180

Total closing balance 6,00,o2,314 7 ,01 ,O3,445

Changes in inventories 1,01 ,01 ,131 2,51 ,87 ,957

Particulars March 31,2021
Rupees

arch 31, 2020
Rupees

Sataries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity(refer note 29)
Leave compensation
Staff welfare expenses

8,98,51 , 1 6l
1,07,98,638

22,70,631
9,54,636

13,82,009

I,21 ,01 ,660
98,52,141
14,74,O21

56,00,990
1,35,175

Total employee benefit expense 10,52,57,077 9,91 ,63,987

Particulars March 31,2021
Rupees

March 31 , 2020
Rupees

Depreciation of property, ptant and equipment
(refer note 3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 27)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

6,67,97,008

3,38,80,845

8,12,91 ,323

2,76,31,2_81

Total depreciation and amortisation 10,06,77,853 10,89,22,604



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended l arch 31, 2021

Note 2'l: Other expenes

Particulars ^,{arch 
11,2021

Rupees

March 31,2020
Rupees

Spares and stores
Sub-contracting expenses

Power and fuel expenses
Freight and forwarding charges
Security charges
Rent

Rates and taxe5
lnsurance
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery
Buitdings
Others

Advertising and sales promotion

Warranty expense
Travettinq and conveyance
Leqal and professionat fees
Office expenses

Payment to arJditor (refer details betow)
Provision for inventory impairment
Loss on sale of fixed ass€ts
Miscellaneous expenses

1,96,38,O74
7,38,34,802
3,73,16,838

54,65,869
47,63,555
15,71,1N
15,4,405
32,69,U1

98,86,7-27

7,75,963
51,471

1,57,93,759
75,31,261

1,27,47,625
17,93,174
19,78,766
58,09,552

96,86,582

1,25,69,024
7,87,Tt,162
3,76,06,342

41,61,652
43,61,695
19,34,670
4,45,U7

15,06,444

43,11,578
10,u6

6,77,437
1,78,043

2,04,85,562
81,45,459
44,93,551
21,u,844
14,U,063
83,79,572
9,76,9&

55,53,226
Totalother expenses 21 ,39 ,54,9 44 19 ,8 3 ,43 ,7 27

Particulars ilarch 3'1, 2021
Rupees

,ilarch 3t,2020
Rupees

Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses

19,00,000
78,266

11,00,000
1,84,063

Total payments to auditors 19,78,266 't4.84,063

Note 21a: Details of payments to auditors

Note 22: Finance cost

Note 23: Exceptional items

Note a: lmpairment of inventories and property, plant and equipment
CFL technology has been replaced by LED and other newer technotogjes in tighting iMustry. Considering significant
reduction in CFL busine5s aM lower future demaM the Company has recorded provision towards inventory impairment of
Rs. 8,430,431 and impairment of property, plant and equipment of R5. .t4,799,514.

Further, in the current year, the Company has discontinued air conditioner business and have determined recoverabte
vatue of these assets based on quotation reaeived from prospective buyer and accordingly recorded provision towards
impairment of proF,erty, plant and <uipment of Rs. 9,101,519.

Note b: Settlement of litigation
During the year ended March 31, 2020, an overseas vendor had demanded payments for LEDS so supplied by the vendor.

Particulars l,{arch 31,2021
Rupees

,larch 3'1,2020
Rupees

lnterest on debts and borrowings
Other borrowing cost
lnterest on lease liabiLity (refer note 27)
lnterest on others

13, 89,09,784
9,11,10,673
1,21,86,533
5,68,80,309

31,24,47,U5
8,16,39,987
'1,96,56,997

4,68.50,285
Total finance costs 49 ,90 ,9 7 ,299 46,O5,95,114

Particulars l arch 31, 2021
Rupees

li{arch 31, 2020
Rupees

lmpairment of inventories (refer note a)
lmpairment of property, ptant and equipment (refer note a)
Settlement of litigation (refer note b)

84,10,411
5,41,01,033

46.90,000
Total exceptional items 6,75,31,464 46,90,000

q/o\

I I \l$v'' \ ,.<M

The said matter was in dispute with the arbitrator under the proyisions of The
the same was settled with a total outftow of Rs.

Act, 1995 and



Starlit€ Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended l.tarch 3'1, 2021

Note 2,{: Capital and other commitments

As at i,tarch 3'1,202'l the Company has capitat commitments ofRs. 19,218,931 (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 14,196,970).

Note 25: Earning per share

The fottowing tabte reftects profit and share data used in basic and dituted EPS computatjons

Particulars i{arch 31,
2021Rupe'es

llarch 31,
2020Rupees

Lo5s before exceptional items

Loss after exceptionaL items

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year

Eaming per share (nominal vatue of Rs. 10 Per Share)
Before exceptionat items - Basic and dituted
After exceptional items - Basic and dituted

(43,09,18,578) (48,82.14.645)

149 ,14,7A.042 (49 ,29 ,U ,6451

1,25,00,000

(34.48)
(39.48)

1,25,00,000

(39.06

t39.43

Note 26: Pending litigations

liabilities

Particulars
March 31,

2021RuDees
March 31,

2020RuDees
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:

Direct tax matters
lndirect tax matteB
Obtigations under EPCG scheme

37,92,948
37,71,602

5,11,06,149

37,92,948
63,15,022

6,15,53,499

Total 5,86,70,699 7,16,61,469

Direct and indirect tax matteri
The Company is contesting the demands and the management, betieves that its position witl likety be upheld jn the appettate process. No tax
exPnse has been accrued in the financiat statements for the tax demands raised. The management betieves that the uttimate outcome of this
proceeding Mtt not have a materiat adveBe effect on the Companys finanaiat position and resutts of the operations. Accordingty, no provision for
the contingent tiabitity has been recognized in the financr'al statement.

Obligations under EPCG kheme
The Company had irnported machineries for manufacturing of CFL and water Heate6 under the Export Promotion Capita( Goods Authorisation
("ErcG Scheme"). The said Scheme requires the Company to futfit export obtigatjons equivatent to 5 to 8 times of the duties saved on capital
goods. The obtiSation need5 to be futfitted in a prescribed period reckoned from the date of issue.

For CFL, the Company has met the export obtigation partiatty resulting jn unfutfitted duty saved of Rs. R5. 9,974,069 ( arch 31, 2O2O: Rs.

9,974,0691 and interest accrued amounting to Rs. 18,211,932 (^narch 31, 2020: Ri. 16,715,E21). The Management has apptied to Directorate
General of ForeiSn Trade ('DGFT"), Pune sa€k]ng waiver of unfutfitled export obtigation as the Company coutd not meet the same due to
competition, tow demand, technotogical obsolescence and newer technotogies Uke LED reptacing CFL. The Management based on legaL opinion is
confident that since CFL te(hnotogy has become obsotete and reptaced by LED, the waiver witt be granted for both principat and interest
tiability. Thus, no provision has been recorded for the same.

For Water HeateB, during the year ended March 3'1, 2020, the Company was granted an extension by DGFT to meet the export obtigation by May
and June 2022. Further, the Department attowed Fans assembted by the Company for meetjng jts export obtigation. Though the Company ha5 not
made exPort of Water Heate6 and Fans jn past, Baiai Etectricats a significant sharehotder of the Company has necessary presence in the exF,on
market and agreed to suppon the Company for meeting its export obtiSations. During the year ended /$arch 31, 2021, the Company has futfilted
certain export obtiSations through export of Fans by Bajaj Electricats resuttinS in unfutfitted obligation of R5. 11,409,280 (larch 31, 2O2O: Rs.
1E,754,926). and interest amounting to R5. 11,510,E68 (March 3'1, 2020: 16,10E,6E3). Based on Companys ptan to assemble fans and Bajai
EtectricaLs support, the management is confident of meeting it5 export obtigation by the extended due date. Hence, no provi5ion for these
amounts has beeo recorded in the books.

s
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St rllt. Liahting Limit.d
Not6 to th. fln.nclal st tddts for the ysr dd.<t March 3l , 2O2l

The comP.ny h.t la* .ontr..t! for v.rlous plint tnd ru.hi.sy ur€d i. lB op.r.tion3 .nd tt. l.nd upo. whi.h f.ctory is buitt. Los of pt.nt .nd Da.hin.ry gasaly h.v.los t.rmr b.twm ! end 5 yerr, whiL los.hotd t.nd ln€r.Iy hav. 1..* term of 67 ye.6.

Th. comP.nv .l$ hts .6rt ih 1616 of storago eP.6 with l{e rEmr of I 2 mo.th or 16r .nd lGa6 ot go<toM prnis with tow v.lu.. The company apptiB th€ .shon-tsm
lde' .nd 'lee of low-v.l@ .s€t!, rEotnition €x ptioB for the ta*

.. C.ry'ng valu. of nght ot ue .s*rr at the 6d of th. .eoning pdiod by ct.$

31.2021
65.31,354 1,16,890

Plant and machinery 3,50,40,516 2,59,48,581 5,90,91
Pla.t and n.chinery. Prepaid I 15,45,808 25,88,

2,76,11,241 6,41,77,6

b. r aturi9 analytir of lse ll.bilirlB

Ihe reighted avehge i.crnfital borowing 6te applied to lea* li.biliti6 is b€rw$ tne 6nge ot t4 to t1% for original p€nod ot 60 mstns.

.. Amountt reoinl!€d ln it tm.nt of profit..d l6s

d. Ahounts r(qniecd in thc sratmst of ca3h flob

r,bturity .n.lrsit , .ontractual ondtsounted.ash flo*
165 than fre year 8,01,39,3?,1 8,23,63,a2,r

1,96,26,010

Total und*ounted Ic.* lr.brhner ar at ye.r end 12,00,r5,35a 15,88,05,543

Le.e ll.bilitiB in.llded ln thestatemgnt offlnandal positon ,0.J0,26,718 14,23,70,241
7,71,31,hA 7.21.91.993

7.01.77.291

nterBt o.r leae liabiltiB 1,21,36,511 1,96,56,997
Expenses relatinq to thon tem Lea*s r.1,53.200
ErPens reladng to teas of low-valoe arsrs, excludinc shod-tem leas of low value 91,r70
Depreciation exp€ne ol nqht ol up as5etj 1,13,30.845 7,76,J1,741
Amount rfto3nised in profrt.nd loss a.(ount 4,76,18,558
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Starlite Lightlng Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note 29: Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan which is unfunded. Every emptoyee who has compteted 5 years or more of service gets a gratuity
on departure at 15 days satary (tast drawn satary) for each compteted year of service.

The foltowing table summarizes the components of net b€nefit expense reco8nized in the profit and loss account status and amounts recognised in
the baLance sheet for the gratuity ptan.

The Company estimates Rs. 692,716 (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 876,000) to be paid within next ofle year.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take in to account inftation, seniority, promotion and o(her retevant
factors, such as suppty and demand in the employment market.

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined b€nefit obligation as a result of
reasonabte chanSe5 in key asgrmptjons occurring at the end of the reporting year and the rn€thod of assumption used in preparing sensitivity
anatysit did not change compared to previous year.

l.rch 31,2021 l arch 31, 2O2O

Liability at the beainninq of the year
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and toss

- lnterest cost
- Current service cost

Recognised in other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains / (losses)

i. Change in financiat assumptions
ii. Experjence variance

B€nefits pajd

1,78,71,442

12,14,398
27,70,631

14,15,032
i.t,52,671)

1,24,10,699

9,52,aO2
14,74,021

18,16,137
r6,08,359
{1.90,576)

Liabiljty at the end of the year ?,?2,18,832 1,74,7'1,442

in the statement of profit and loss

Larch 31, 2021
^46rch 

31, 2O2o

Net interest expense
Current serYice cost

12,'14,198

22,70,631
9,52,&2

14,74,011
Expense recognjsed in statement of profit and loss 34,85,029 24,26,423

A arch 31, 2021 l arch 31, 2020

Disaount rate
SaLary esaatation rate
Attrition rate

6.80%

7.00%

2.00%

6.mx
7.00x
2.00%

^ 
arch 31, 2021 l'{ar.h 31,2020

Change in liability for 1X dec.eas€ in dis.ount rate
Change in liability for lX increase in discount rate
Change in liabi(ity for 1X decreas€ in saLary escatatjon rate
ChanSe in tiabitity for tX jncrease in saLary escatation rate

Change in Uabitity for 'l% increase in attritjon rate

2,50,34,958
1,98,57,288
1,98,40,953
2,50,N,779
2,22,87,2U
1,21,57.851

2,N,26,412
1,60,55,305
1,61,90,735
1,98,18,383
1,79,06,006
1,78,41,220



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended ,r^arch 31, 2O2i

Note 30: Fair value measurements

Fair yalue by category
The carrying value of financial assets / tiabitities by categories are as foltows :

Except long term borrowing and other non-current financiat assets all financiat assets and liabitities are short
term. Hence, their vatue is not expected to be materialty different from carryjng amount,

Regarding long-term borrowing and other non-current financial assets, the Company has determined the fair
vatue to be not materiatly different to the carrying amount. The fair vatue is Level 2 fair vatue determined using
DCF approach and observabte tnputs.

Particulars March 31,2021
Rupees

liarch 31, 2O2O

Rupees
A. Financial assets
hleasured ot amortised cost

Trade receivabtes
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets (current)
Other financiat assets (non-current)

B. Financial liabilities
ileosured at omortised cost

Trade payabtes

Other financiat liabitities
Lease Liabitity
Short term borrowings
Long term Borrowings

25 ,28,16,469
76,21,465

10,43,80,869
5,94,70,694

29 ,24 ,06 ,542
1 ,87 ,30 ,46 ,875

10 ,30 ,26 ,718
1 ,85,61 ,11,674
1,25,75,47,767

25 ,96 ,46 ,409
57 ,119

9,79,75,916
2,41,13,722

28 ,34 ,84 ,199
1,26,54,86,598

1 4 ,23 ,70 ,7a4
1 ,74 ,64 ,49 ,979
1 ,50 ,73 ,90 ,828



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the flnancial statements for the yea. ended l arch 31, 2021

Note 31: Financi.l risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principat financial tiabitities comprise of borrowings, trade payabLes and other financiat tiabitities. The main purpose of these financial
liabitities is to finance the entity's operations. The Company's principat financial assets inctude trade receivables, cash and cash equivatents and other
bank batances that derive directty from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and tjquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company's senior management provides assurance that the Company'5 financial hsk activities are governed by appropriate poLicies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in a.cordance with the Company's poLicies and risk obiectives. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees poticies for managing each of these risks, which are summarjsed betow.

(A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financiat toss to the Company if a customer or counter-party faitr to meet its contractuat obtigations. Credit risk encompasses
the direct risk of defautt, the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as wetl as concentration rjsks. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities mainLy in reLation to trade re€eivabtes.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables of the Company are typicatty unsecurd and credit risk is managed through credit approvats and perjodicat monitoring of the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms.

The Company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reponing period. ln determining whether an impairment loss shoutd be
recorded in profit or toss, the Company makes iudgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash ftows from such trade re€eivables. ln respect of trade receivables, the Company has a provisioning poticy that is commensurate to the
expected losses. The provisioning policy js based on past experience, customer creditability, and also on the nature and specifics of business.

The maxjmum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2021 and Aarch 3'1, 2020 js the carrying vatue of such trade and other receivabtes as shown in
note 5(a) of the financiaLs.

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables

Particular5 l.t.rch 3 t, 2021

Rupees

l'{arch 31, 2020
Rupees

Opening allowance 1,95,51 ,92O 1,95,59,563
Created durinq the year

UtiUsed during the year (1,95,51,920) t7,u3)
Closing allowance 1,95,51,92O

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company maintains its cash and bank batances with credit worthy banks and reviews it on an on-going basis. i oreover, the interest-bearing
deposits are with banks of reputation, good past track record and high-quatity credit rating. Hence, the credit rjsk is assessed to be Low. The maxjmum
exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 is the carryjng value of such cash and cash equivatents and deposits with banks as
shown in note 5(b) of the financiaLs,
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Noter to the financial statements for the year ended l{arch 3l, 202.1

(B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company witt not be able to meet its financial obtigation as they fatl due. Liquidjty risk arjses because of the
possibitity that the Company could be required to pay its tiabitities earlier than expected or encounters difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financiat Liabitities as they falt due. The Company's approach to managing Uquidity is to ensure, as far as possibte, that jt witt atways
have sufficient liquidity to meet its tiabitities when due. The Company manages tiquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank batance and
avaitabitity of fundjng through adequate amount of committed credit faciLjtjes.
Bank overdraft facitities are sanctioned for a period of one year which are then enhanced / renewed from time to time. Though the bank overdrafts
are repayabte on demand as per the terms of sanction, these are usuatty renewed by aLl banks in normaL cjrcumstances, Hence bank overdraft facilities
are availabte for use throughout the year. The Company recejves a line of credit from its related panies. The Company also recejves a tine of credit
from its retated parties. Atso, Bajaj EtectricaLs Limited (joint investor) has agreed to provide necessary financiat suppon so that the Company is able to
meets its obligations on time.
I'laturities of financial llabilities
The tabte betow summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financiat habitities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars Carrying value as

at l4arch 31, 2021
upto 1 year More than 1

Year
Total

Borrowings 3,10,86,59 ,441 1,85,61,11,674 1,82,33,81,190 3,67,94,92,864
Trade payables 29 ,24 ,06,543 29 ,24,06,543 29,24,06,543
Lease tiabitity 1O,30,26,718 8,03,89,824 3,96,26,030 12,N,15,854
Other financiat tiabitities 1 ,87 ,30,46 ,875 1,87,30,46,875 1,87,30,46,875
Total 5,37,71,19,577 4,10,19,54,916 1 ,46 ,30 ,O7 ,270 5,96,49,62,136

Particulars Carrying value as

at March 31, 2020
upto 1 year ,{ore than 1

Total

Borrowings 3 ,25,38,40,807 1 ,7 4,98,14 ,813 2,15,42,36,147 3,90,40,50,960
Trade payabtes 28,34,84,199 28,65 ,63,772 28,65,63,772
Lease tiabr'tity 14,23,70,284 E,23,63,824 7,U,41,824 15,88,05,648
Other financiat tiabitities 1,26,54,86,59E 1,26,24,07,025 1,26,24,07 ,025
Total 4,94,51,81,847 3 ,38 ,1 1 ,49 ,434 2,23,06,77,971 5,61,1E,27,405

(C) arket Ri5k

^ 
arket risk is the risk that the fair vatue of future cash ftows of a financial instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price rjsk such as commodity risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash ftow5 of an exposure witL fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company has certain export sales and therefore is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. The Company also
has imports payabtes arising out of trade in the normat cou6e of business. A these commercial transactions are recorded jn currency other than the
functional currency (lNR), the Company js exposed to Foreign Exchange risk arjsjng from future commercial transactions and recognis€d assets and
tiabitities.

(a) Foreitn currency risk exposurei
The Companys exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reportinq perjod is as under :

Particulars March 31, 2021 i{arch 31, 2020
USD EUR USD EUR

Financiatassets 53,318 90,582 11,294 1 ,85,759
Financiat tiabitities r 5,085 46,750 &,600



Starlite Lighting Limlted
Notes to the financial statements for the year ehded itarch 31, 2021

b) Seniitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to chanSes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments is given betow:

Financiat assets

Currency Change in Rate Effect on profit before tax in INR

,'{arch 31, 2021 I'tarch 31, 2020
USD +5% 1,95,956 42,536
USD -5% (1,95,956 142,536
Euro +5% 3,89,951 7,71,782
Euro -5% (3,89,951 \7,71,782

Financial liabilities

Currency Change in Rate Effect on profit before tax in INR

l.larch 31, 2021 itarch 31,2020
USD +5% t55,441) 12,43,298)
U5D 5% 55,441 2,43,298
Euro +5% (1,99, r 04)
Euro -5% 1,99,104

Note 32: Capital llanagement
For the purpose of the ComPanys capita[ management, capitaL inctudes issued equity capitat and all other equity reserves attributabte to the equity
hotdeB of the Company. The primary obiective of the Company's capitat management is to maximise the sharehotde/s vatue. The Company,s capitat
management obiectives are to maintain equity including alL reserves to protect economic viability and to finance any growth opportunities that may be
availabLe in future so as to maximize shareholders'vatue. The Company is monitoring capitat using debt equity ratio as its base, which is debt to equity.
The company's Policy is to keep debt equity ratio betow three and infuse capital if and when required through jssue of new shares and/or better
operational results and efficient working capital management.
The Company monitors capitat on the basis of the foLtowing gearinq ratio:

Particula15 ,iarch 31,2021
Rupees

,,tarch 31, 2020
Rupees

Borrowings (refer note 13 a & b)

Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 13 c)

Net debt (A)

Total equity (8)

Debt / equity ratio (A/B)

3,10,86,s9,,{41

1 ,E3 ,26,72,668

3,25,38,40,807

1 ,2?,73 ,42,671

1,91,13,32,109 414,11 ,83 ,428

(3,61,81,,r4,88,{ (3, r 2,32,59,810)

( 1.37) (1.43)

At the reporting date as wett as at the end of the comparative period, the Company has neSative <uity. Hence its debt equity ratio is not met.
However, the Company has received commitment from Bajai Etectricats Limited to continue providjng funds so that the Company is abte to meet its
business obligations. Atso, its tiabitities inctude R5 1,709,119,4E6 (^larch 31, 2o2o Rs. 1,331,468,961) payable to Baiai Electricals Limjted. considering,
Bajaj EtectricaLs Limited commitment to continue providing support, these obtigations are not likety to be catted in near future.

Note 33: Going Concern
During the period ended tr{arch 31, 2021 the Company incurred a net toss of R5. 493,470,042 (I{arch 31, ZO2O Rs. 492,9U,645). As at March j1, 2021, the
Company has accumutated to5ses of Rs. 3,743,144,884 (lr{arch 31, 2OZO Rs. 3,24E,259,810), negative net worth of R5. 3,518,533,027 (t^arch 3j, 2O2O Rs.
3,023,647,953) and ne8ative workinS capital of Rs. 3,353,927,401 (March 31, 2O2O: Rs. 2,695,028,32). The management ptans to take steps to reduce
its cost, diversify product ponfotio, identify new customers and make the operations profitabte in the future. Further, Bajaj Etectricats Limited, being a
sjgnificant sharehotder and customer of the Company, has committed to provide continuing financial and operational support to the Company for its
continued operations in the foreseeabte future. The Company has received an additjonat equity infusr'on of Rs. 45O,OOO,OOO from Ba.jaj ELectricats after
the reporting period. Consequently, Bajai Etectricats has become the hotding company and has obtained unjLateral contro( over the Company. Atso, after
the reponing period the Company has agreed to sett the land and building at Satpur unit to one of the sharehotders for a considertion of tu. 9O,OOO,OOO.
Furthermore, Bajaj is evatuating merger pLan with the Company on a going concern basis. Accordingty these financiat statements have been prepared
under the going concem assumption.



Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended ,r{arch 3i, 2021

Note 34: Details of dues to Micro, Small and ,r^edlum Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The disctosure of the amounts due to suppliers under Myr^ED Act is as under:

The information has been given in respe<t of such vendors to the extent they coutd be identified as micro and smatt enterprises on the
basis of information avaitabte with the Company.

Note 35: Segment information

Operating segments are defined as components of an entity for which discrete financial information is avaitabte that is evatuated
regutarly by the Chief Operating Decisjon Maker ("CODM'), in deciding how to alLocate resources and assessing performance. The
companys coDM is the Managing Director and the company has onty one reportable segment i.e. consumer Products.

Consumer Products inctudes tighting products which incLudes CFL and LED Lamps, jts components and accessories and Water heate.s, Air
conditioners, Mixers and Btenders. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and attocates resources based on an anatysis of
various performance indicato6 by operating segments, viz. singte segment of consumer products. Segment performance js evatuated
based on Drofit or Loss and i5 measured consistenttv with orofit or loss in the financial statements.

Geographical regment:
The business is organised in two geographjcal segments i.e. withjn lndia and outside lndia.

Revenue f rom external customers

Particulars March 31,202'l
Rupees

lAarch 3'1, 2020
Rupees

Segment revenues
lndia

Outside lndia
1 ,71 ,67,50,n1

2,87,62,270

1,62,72,40,435

3,95,34,462
Total revenue per statement of profit or loss 1,74,55,12,991 1 ,66 ,67 ,7 4 ,897

b) Non-current assets:

Particulars March 31,202'l
Rupees

L{arch 3'1, 2020
Rupees

lndia

Outside lndia
1 ,02 ,58 ,67 ,822 1,16,92,07,1J8

Total 1,02,58,67,822 1 ,'16,92,07,338

Atl non-current assets of the Company are tocated in lndia.

c) Cu3tomers contributing more than 10% of the revenue
ln the consumer products segment, 1 customer contributed to Rs 1,518,371,875 revenue accounting for 87% of the totat revenue. ln the
previous year, in the consumer products segment, 2 customers contributed to Rs '1,55'1,302,167 revenue accounting for 93% of the totat

Particulars March 31, 2021
Rupees

March 31, 2020
Rupee5

Principat amount due to supptiers under MSMED Act as on March 3.1 9,96,70,814 8,16,84,971
lnterest accrued and dug to supptiers under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 on the above amount, 5,88,065 12,06,909
Payment made to supptiers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day durjng the year
lnterest paid to suppliers under the MSMED Act
lnterest due and payabte towards supptiers under M9yiED Act towards payments atready made 12,06,909
lnterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 17,94,974 12,06,909
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Starlite Lighting Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended llarch 31, 2021

Note 35: lmPact of covtD l9
The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic gtobatly and jn lndia is causing siSnificant disturbance and slow,down in econolnic activity. The
Company has performed comprehensive astessment of the possible impact of the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic on their operations, tiquidity position
and the consequential jmpact on the realizability of its asset balances as at Ltarch ]1, 2021, considering the jnternat and external information upto
the date of approvaL of financial statements including economic forecasts. The Company has performed analy5is on the assumptions used and based
on the current indjcators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying amount of the assets. The Company has
resumed operations taking jnto account directives from the Government. Considering the constantty evolving situation, the impact assessed may b€
different after the date of approval of these rioancjat statements and the management will continue to monitor any materjal changes arising due to
impact of this pandemic on the financial and operation p€rformance of the Company and take necessary measures to addre5s the sjtuation.

Note 37: Subsequent events
Pursuant to the extra-ordinary general meetjng of the members of the Company hetd on April 29, 2O2t it was resotved:
(a) That Mr. Ravindra Bharati and Mr. Arvind Bharati ("Bharatj Promoters") have agreed to retjnquish and transfer control and management rjghts to
Bajai Etectricats Limited through execution of the Controt Transfer Agreement between the Company, Bharati Promoters and Bajaj Etectricals
Limited. Bajaj Etectricals Limited shatl pay a control premium of Rs. 148,000,000 to the outgoing Bharati Promoters jn the agreed ratio in the
manner stated in the said Control Transfer Agreement.

(b) To assign atl the rights, titt6 and interest of the Company under the tease agreement between Maharashtra State tndustriat Devetopment
Corporation and the Company jn respect of atl the piece of leasehotd industrial land alongwith all the altied buitdings/structures thereon of Satpur
Unit in favour of A r. Ravindra tharati for a total consideration of R5. 90,100,000. Tilt the time such ne<essary approvats for the assignment are
receiYed, the Cornpany shall enter into teave and license agreement with Startite Etectrodrives Private Limited in respect of the said unit for such
period and on such monthty license f€€s as may be determined and decided by the Eoard at its own discretion.

Further, puBuant to the extra-ordinary generat meeting of the members of the Company held on May l, 2021, the Company has altotted 45,O0O,OOO
equity shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating to Rs. 450,000,000 by way of preferential allotment to Eajaj Etectricats Limited and other persons
mentioned therein on a pnvate placement basis,

Note 38: Proposed merger
The Board of Directors of 8a.iaj Etectricats Limited has decided to commence evatuation of a potential merger of the Company into Eajaj Etectricat5
Limited with a view to combine the streflgths and synergies of both businerses so as to benefit atl stakehotders. The decision to merge shall be
taken based on the recommendations of Bajaj Electricats Ljmited Management and Audit Committee.
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